
 1 

 

 
LACONIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AUGUST 27, 2012 
CITY HALL – CONFERENCE ROOM 200A 

7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:    
 
Mayor Seymour called the meeting to order at the above date and time.  
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG:    
 
Councilor Henry Lipman led the Salute to the Flag.  
 
ROLL CALL:     
 
City Clerk Reynolds called the roll with the following Councilors present: Councilor Doyle, Lahey, Lipman, 
Baer, Hamel, and Bolduc. Also present City Manager Scott Myers and Finance Director Donna 
Woodaman.  
 
Mayor Seymour advised that Nominations, Appointments & Elections will be taken up immediately 
following Interviews.  
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 
 

 Regular & Non-Public Minutes of August 13, 2012    
 
Councilor Bolduc moved to approve the regular and non-public minutes of August 13, 2012. Seconded 
by Councilor Hamel. Motion passed unanimously.  

 
CONSENT AND ACTION CALENDAR: NONE 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
 
Charlie St. Clair addressed the Council. Mr. St. Clair commented on his concern that he has requested a 
loading zone be designated in front of his property on Main Street and to his knowledge research has 
been done by the Police Department and Public Works. He has been advised that this will be taken into 
consideration with other items regarding parking in Downtown, but he would like the Council to look at 
this item sooner. In many cases customers will park there and load or unload their vehicle and they 
should be able to do so legally. Mayor Seymour replied that the Council will look into his concerns.  
 
Mr. St. Clair commented that he is happy to see the use of Motorcycle Week funds being publicized and 
that the public can see the uses, but encouraged making a list of purchases over the years available as 
well so people can see what all of the effort can accomplish for the City and taxpayers because 
purchases made with these funds are purchases that the taxpayers do not need to absorb through 
property taxes.  



 2 

 
INTERVIEWS:  
 
Zoning Board of Adjustment:  (2 regular positions vacant, 5 alternate positions vacant) 

1. Robert Smith - seeking reappointment as an alternate for a 3-year term expiring 2015 
 
Mr. Smith addressed the Council. Mr. Smith was appointed in February to fill a vacant term and has 
attended every meeting since. He has been an active participant in many and is willing to continue. Mr. 
Smith encouraged the Council to keep trying to find volunteers to fill the remaining vacancies.  
 
NOMINATIONS, APPOINTMENTS & ELECTIONS:  
 
Mayor Seymour requested a motion to suspend the Council Rules & Procedures for this agenda item to 
allow for appointments to be made for Zoning Board of Adjustments. Councilor Hamel moved as 
requested. Seconded by Councilor Bolduc. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Zoning Board of Adjustment:  (2 regular positions vacant, 5 alternate positions vacant) 

1. Michael Foote - seeking reappointment as a full member for a 3-year term expiring 2015  
 
Councilor Hamel moved to appoint Michael Foote as a full member of the Zoning Board of Adjustment 
for a 3-year term expiring 2015. Seconded by Councilor Bolduc. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. David Greski - seeking reappointment as a full member for a 3-year term expiring 2015 
 
Councilor Hamel moved to appoint David Greski as a full member of the Zoning Board of Adjustment for 
a 3-year term expiring 2015. Seconded by Councilor Bolduc. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

3. Dennis Robitaille - seeking reappointment as an alternate for a 3-year term expiring 2015 
 
Councilor Hamel moved to appoint Dennis Robitaille as an alternate member of the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment for a 3-year term expiring 2015. Seconded by Councilor Bolduc. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

4. Robert Smith - seeking reappointment as an alternate for a 3-year term expiring 2015  
 
Councilor Hamel moved to appoint Robert Smith as an alternate member of the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment for a 3-year term expiring 2015. Seconded by Councilor Bolduc. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Conservation Commission: (2 regular positions vacant) 
 
Councilor Lahey asked if it was confirmed that a Zoning Board of Adjustments position was not a conflict 
with the Conservation Commission. Mayor Seymour confirmed that it is not.  
 

1. Michael Foote - seeking reappointment as a full member for a 3-year term expiring 2015 
 
Councilor Lahey moved to appoint Michael Foote as a full member of the Conservation Commission for a 
3-year term expiring 2015. Seconded by Councilor Bolduc. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

2. Deborah Williams - seeking reappointment as a full member for a 3-year term expiring 2015 



 3 

 
Councilor Lahey moved to appoint Deborah Williams as a full member of the Conservation Commission 
for a 3-year term expiring 2015. Seconded by Councilor Bolduc. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: NONE 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: NONE 
 
PRESENTATIONS: NONE 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT: 
 
Mayor Seymour commented that this is the second year that the Got Lunch! Program has assisted the 
children of the City. Mayor Seymour requested to schedule a presentation from the program for the 
September 27, 2012 agenda.  
 
CITIZEN REQUESTS TO COMMENT ON CURRENT AGENDA ITEMS: NONE 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
1. FINANCE:      (Lipman, Hamel, Baer)  

a) WOW Trail Fund 
b) Special Item Budget Requests Procedural Review 
c) Huot Center 

 
No report on any item in committee 

 
2. PUBLIC SAFETY:  ( Baer, Doyle, Lahey)  

a) Fair St./Court St. traffic problems and accidents 
 

No report on any item in committee 
 

3. GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS & ORDINANCES:   (Doyle, Bolduc, Lahey)  
a) Energy Committee 
b) Vending and Licensing Fees 
c) Chapt. 119, Building Construction regarding signed architectural plans for residential units 

 
 No report on any item in committee 

 
4. PUBLIC WORKS:  (Bolduc, Baer, Lahey) (Report on meeting held at 6:00 p.m. regarding Sewer 

Accounts)  
a) Ordinance Amending Chapter 221, Vehicles and Traffic/Parking on Sublawns 
b) Proposed ordinance regarding vehicles over 18,000 lbs. and engines idling between the 

hours of midnight and 6:00 a.m.  
c) Proposed ordinance regarding large vehicles parked on City streets and sidewalks 

 
Councilor Bolduc reported on the meeting held this evening at 6:05 p.m. regarding the City accounts 
that for customers that are utilizing the City sewer system, but not the water system. Assistant Public 
Works Director Luke Powell presented options to the committee, which resulted in good public 



 4 

feedback. Councilor Bolduc requested that City Manager Myers explain the process and how it will 
affect the City.  
 
City Manager Myers explained that this involves changing the rate to a flat rate schedule which requires 
a public hearing. It is anticipated that the Council will schedule the public hearing for the next meeting 
with a finalized item being adopted on September 27.  
 
Councilor Bolduc moved to hold a public hearing on September 10, 2012 during the regular Council 
meeting regarding changing rates for residents on the City sewer system without City water services 
(“Sewer Only”). Seconded by Councilor Doyle. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Councilor Hamel asked if the recommendation from Asst. Director Powell is on the City website. City 
Manager Myers replied that it will be linked and a standalone document.  
 

5. LAND & BUILDINGS:   (Hamel, Lipman ,Bolduc) 
a) Repair & maintenance of City Buildings 
b) Former Laconia Police Department Building 
 
No report on any item in committee 

 
LIAISON REPORTS: NONE 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT:  
 
City Manager Myers reviewed the Recycling Report which indicates overall recycling just over 15%. This 
is an improvement from the prior two week period. There is also positive activity at the remote sites.  
 
Councilor Lipman asked to have the report reflect the running total of estimated savings in dollar 
amounts. Councilor Lipman explained that he feels it would have more of a meaning to people than 
percentages. City Manager Myers replied that he will add the savings to his report.  
 
City Manager Myers reviewed the Monthly Economic Development Report. City Manager Myers noted 
that there will be an Economic Revitalization Zone (ERZ) Forum held on Thursday, September 13 at 5:00 
at 600 Main Street (former Sundial building). Representatives from DRED will be available to educate 
and promote the districts and answer any questions people have. 
  
City Manager Myers updated the Council on the Goals & Objectives.  
 
Councilor Lipman asked if the punch list of items needing attention at Parks & Recreation facilities it 
available. City Manager Myers replied that he will have it available around the end of the week.  
 
Councilor Baer asked if the Memorandum of Understanding with the Winnipesaukee River Basin Project 
(WRBP) has been completed. City Manager Myers replied that it has and a signed copy is available for 
review.  
 
Councilor Hamel asked how long the seasonal help will be retained for the key areas of the City. City 
Manager Myers replied that he will be working until mid-September and after that time the Public 
Works and Parks & Recreation departments will be completing the necessary tasks. Councilor Hamel 
recommended retaining the employee longer. City Manager Myers replied that the season is slowing 
down and it can be handled by current staff.  



 5 

 
Mayor Seymour commented that we are embarking on one year since the Goals & Objectives was 
established. It would be recommended that the Council look at the list and think about what needs to 
stay and what items can be removed.  
 
Councilor Hamel stated that there is an entrance to the City on South Main Street that is in need of care 
and is barely visible. City Manager Myers replied that he will look into it.  
 
City Manager Myers updated the Council on the removing of desktop printers form departments as a 
means of cost savings. At this time 34 printers have been removed from various departments and have 
been substituted with centralized printers in each department. This will be beneficial because time will 
be saved in the IT Department and the cost of ink cartridges will be eliminated. Councilor Lahey asked 
where people are printing now. City Manager Myers explained that copiers in each department now 
serve as printers with one color copier available on each floor of City Hall.  
 
City Manager Myers advised that there was funding in the prior budget to replace the generator at the 
Black Brook pump station and after going out to bid the funding is not sufficient. The reason for the 
increase is because the generator needs to be mounted on the exterior of the pump station to be in 
compliance. The cost will be just over $80,000 and will be funded by using funds allocated in the current 
budget with the funds carried over from the prior budget as opposed to using Contingency funds. In the 
next budget there will be an adjustment for the project that cannot be completed this year as planned.  
 
Councilor Bolduc asked why the cost is so high. City Manager Myers explained that it will be fenced in 
and raised because it is in a flooding area.  
 
Councilor Hamel asked if there has been bids received or just received estimates. City Manager Myers 
replied that the bids have been received and this is a known expense.  
 
Councilor Bolduc asked why there is such an increase in cost. City Manager Myers reviewed the 
necessary items that need to be added to be compliant. Councilor Bolduc asked what the difference is in 
the two units and why it is so much more expensive. City Manager Myers explained that because it 
cannot be contained inside the building the price is substantially higher.  
 
Councilor Hamel asked if there is anything that Public Works can do to lessen the cost. City Manager 
Myers replied that the scope of the project is inclusive of a contractor completing the work.  
 
Councilor Lipman asked if the City is anticipating receipt of any funds from the Local Government Center 
(LGC) from the recent ruling. City Manager Myers explained that the City does not used LGC for 
contracted services at this time and we do not stand to receive anything. Councilor Lipman asked if the 
historical use would be considered. City Manager Myers replied that it would not.  
 
City Manager Myers reviewed the NHMA Legislative Policy Setting with the Council. There will be a 
meeting held in late September on the items contained in the packets distributed, therefore the Council 
will need to give direction on the items at the meeting on September 10.  
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. Request by Putnam Fund to Allow Additional Expenditure of Trust Funds  
 



 6 

City Manager Myers explained that the Putnam Fund was established over 40 years ago with an 
endowment of $240,000. Since that time the fund has grown to approximately $1 million. At this time, 
the Fund is only permitted to spend the earnings on interest and dividends, which has decreased 
because of the decline in interest rates. As a result, the ability to produce performances has been 
depleted. The members of the Putnam Fund has put forth a request that a tiered plan be permitted that 
would allow for spending based on the balance of the fund, with the Fund not being permitted to have a 
balance of less than $750,000. According the RSA 292-B, 4 VI there is a threshold of no more than 7% 
which the recommendation is well within. With Council approval, the next step would be to petition the 
Probate Court for authorization to modify plan in the best interest of the Fund.  
 
Councilor Lipman asked if it is required to go to Probate Court to accomplish this action. City Manager 
Myers replied that it does and coincidentally there is a request in the NHMA Policy Setting to change the 
method involving investment policies.  
 
Councilor Lipman asked if there is another way to do this by establishing what the original principle is 
and taking into consideration the current appreciation. City Manager Myers replied that he does not 
believe that there is because of an instance a few years ago where the Fund actually over spent the 
allowable amount and they agreed to limit spending the following years to correct the infraction, and 
the Attorney General’s Office was directional in that instance.  
 
Councilor Hamel commented that he would like to see Council support for this petition. The Putnam 
Fund has been limited and everyone has their opinion, including the Trustees of the Trust Funds and the 
Attorney General’s Office. Nothing is getting done and that is why the petition is coming forward; in no 
way are they trying to draw the funds too low because there are steps in the petition that limit the 
minimum balance of the fund.  
 
Councilor Lahey disagreed that this is a wise idea. Over 40 years, $240,000 to $1 million is not 
tremendous growth and if there had not been the spending restriction the Fund would be completely 
depleted. Councilor Lahey continued that we should be cautious with this type of request and that in 
tough economic times things need to be cut and this may be one of those times to reduce the number 
of shows this year.  
 
Councilor Lipman disagreed with Councilor Lahey stating that at the time the endowment was made 
there was not a viable means to invest and receive a desirable return. The Fund is not trying to uphold 
the original intent of the donor. 
 
Councilor Baer agreed with Councilor Lipman and Councilor Hamel, stating the cost of programs has 
increased since the Fund was established and the intent was to provide free programs which cannot 
happen without funding. With the current funding level they can produce one show, possibly two, but 
no more, because the cost of the entertainers is so high now. By limiting the Fund the Council would be 
limiting the ability to fulfill the donor’s intent. 
 
Councilor Lahey replied that the value of $750,000 in 20 years will not be sufficient to produce shows 
and by doing this we would be limiting the funds for later use and the fund could be completely 
depleted.  
 
Mayor Seymour asked for clarification as to what the Council would specifically need to do. City 
Manager Myers replied that the Council would need to move to permit the petition to be taken to the 
Probate Court for allow for the Fund to be spent in accordance with RSA 292-B, 4 VI.  
 



 7 

Councilor Lipman commented that he does not think we should move forward with the Probate Court 
process to allow the change unless the City will move on to the Attorney General’s Office to have the 
change approved. Councilor Lipman asked a representative of the Putnam Fund how the investments 
are being handled at this time.  
 
Dick Breton replied that he has reviewed the portfolio and the stocks and bonds are divided evenly. Mr. 
Breton commented that in his professional opinion they could be invested better. It appears that the 
investments have been very conservative and it is not bad practice but has limited the return. Councilor 
Lipman replied that this shows that the only way they have money to spend is if they spend off the 
principle. Mr. Breton noted that it is not impossible to return 5% on a bond with a conservative option.  
 
Councilor Lahey asked how long the balance has been at $1 million and not matured.  
 
Charles Bradley addressed the Council. Mr. Bradley explained that the fund has been at $1 million and 
the return on the equity is down to around 1.5% with the return on the bonds being 4.5%. There has 
been consistent refusal by the prior Trustees to increase the equity investment in large dividend 
payment stocks. Mr. Bradley feels it would take two years to turn the Fund around with a 5% return. Up 
until five years ago it was the understanding of the Putnam Fund Board that the spending could be 
made in a manner not to deplete the original endowment of $240,000. At that time it was determined 
by the Attorney General that spending must be limited to interest in dividends.  
 
Councilor Lahey asked what would happen when the Fund is down to $750,000 and the financial market 
still has not rebounded and more spending wants to take place. Mr. Bradley noted that the petition does 
not allow for spending of anything other than interest in dividends if that happens. This is done to 
prevent the Fund from being depleted and determines a base of the Fund. Mr. Bradley distributed an 
analysis of the cost of the shows as noted in a study from 2006.  
 
Councilor Lahey asked if spending $50,000 a year is what the Putnam Fund Board would like to do. Mr. 
Bradley replied that if the balance is $900,000 it does not impair the fund at all to spend $50,000 and 
once the investments are moved in the direction they need to be there will be a 5% return.  
 
Councilor Lipman moved forward the petition presented to Probate Court for further action, pending 
any adjustments that Mitchell Municipal Group may request is made. Seconded by Councilor Hamel. 
Motion passed with 5 Councilors in favor and Councilor Lahey opposed.  
 

2. Amendments to Chapter 195 with Appendix A & Appendix B and Request to Schedule a Public 
Hearing on September 10, 2012 During the Regular Council Meeting  

 
Councilor Lahey moved to hold a public hearing on September 10, 2012 during the regular Council 
meeting regarding amendments to Chapter 195 with Appendix A & Appendix B. Seconded by Councilor 
Hamel. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

3. Resolution adopting the Laconia Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – 2012  
 
City Manager Myers explained that Chief Erickson presented the plan to the Council in October 2011 
and the Council gave approval at that time. It has gone through the necessary channels and is ready for 
final adoption by the Council. The plan is posted on the City website for public viewing.  
 
Councilor Baer moved to adopt the Laconia Hazard Mitigation Plan Update. Seconded by Councilor 
Doyle. Motion passed unanimously.  



 8 

 
4. Request for Purchases Using Motorcycle Week Funds  

a. Defibrillators – Not to Exceed $2,000 
b. All-Terrain Vehicle for Fire Department – Not to Exceed $15,000 

 
Councilor Hamel explained that estimates have been received for the purchase. Councilor Hamel asked 
if the balance of approximately $127,000 given to the Council reflect current year purchases being 
made. City Manager Myers confirmed that it does and with the requested purchases the balance would 
be approximately $110,000.  
 
Councilor Hamel moved to purchase defibrillators, at an amount not to exceed $2,000, and an all-terrain 
vehicle for the Fire Department, at an amount not to exceed $15,000. Seconded by Councilor Doyle.  
 
Councilor Bolduc asked why the all-terrain vehicle needs to be replaced if it is still being used. City 
Manager Myers replied that the current vehicle is not sufficient to complete the tasks it is intended for. 
It was donated to the City several years ago after exceeding its useful life with New Hampshire Motor 
Speedway and it does not have any further useful life with the City. Councilor Bolduc replied that it 
should be sold and not kept if that is the case.  
 
Councilor Lahey asked how an all-terrain vehicle is different than four wheel drive pickup truck. 
Councilor Doyle replied that it will fit into smaller places. Councilor Hamel replied that they need it to go 
into the woods and other tough areas.  
 
It was also noted that this item has been on the CIP schedule for several years as well.  
 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
1. Council membership on the CIP Committee 
2. Milfoil Treatment Funding Request 
3. WOW Trail  
4. Master Plan 
5. EPA Update 
6. Sewer & Water Master Plan 
7. Single Stream Recycling/Concord Co-Op/Solid Waste Disposal Cost Reduction 
8. Strategic Planning/Goal Setting 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Councilor Bolduc reported that Paugus Marina held a picnic last Saturday and it was a fantastic event. 
Executive Councilor Burton arrived on the train and it was wonderful. The event is open to everyone, 
not just Paugus Marina customers.  
 
Councilor Lipman asked if there is an update on the maintenance of the recreation fields. City Manager 
Myers replied that there was prohibitive applications that were very effective, followed by fertilizing. 
The fields have been walked around once a week and they are in very good shape.  
 



 9 

Councilor Lipman asked if the irrigation at Opechee Field is moving forward. City Manager Myers replied 
that it was funded in the budget and will be done. Councilor Hamel asked when it will be done. City 
Manager Myers replied that he is unsure of an exact time.  
 
Councilor Hamel asked what the status of the track is. City Manager Myers advised that this is a 
specialized repair and the person that repairs it has been contacted and he is out of town. He will be 
working on it when he returns.  
 
NON - PUBLIC SESSION:  NONE 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Councilor Bolduc moved to adjourn at 8:18 p.m. Seconded by Councilor Hamel. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
 
Mary A. Reynolds 
City Clerk 


